

# **Nashville MTA Board Meeting**

### WebEx Videoconference:

January 28, 2021, 2020 | 2:30 p.m.

### **Board Members:**

Gail Carr Williams, Chair Hannah Paramore Breen Mary Griffin Janet Miller, Vice Chair Walter Searcy

- 1. Call to Order
- 2. Roll Call
- 3. Approval of the December 17, 2020 MTA Board Minutes
- 4. Public Comments Those requesting to leave a public comment were to submit their request to Monica Howse no later than 5:00 p.m. on Wednesday, January 27, 2021. The Chair will acknowledge those that requested to speak.

5.	Operations &	Finance Committee – Walter Searcy, Chair		
	<ul> <li>Monthly Fi</li> </ul>	nancial Compared to Budget – Ed Oliphant, CFO	OF-D-21-001	Pg. 12
	<ul> <li>Monthly O</li> </ul>	perating Statistics – Dan Freudberg, Director of Service Quality	OF-D-21-002	Pg. 15
		Smith and Partners A&E Contract Task Order Increase for oro Transit Signal Priority Project – Lydia Benda, Project Engineer	M-A-21-001	Pg. 20
6.	<ul> <li>Application</li> <li>Dan Freud</li> </ul>	<b>&amp; Community Engagement Committee – Janet Miller, Chair</b> ns of Innovative Technology to Enhance Service Reliability – berg, Director of Service Quality and Faye DiMassimo, Senior Transportation and Infrastructure to Nashville Mayor John Cooper	NICE-D-21-001	Pg. 21

- 7. CEO's Report Stephen G. Bland, CEO
- 8. Chair's Report Gail Carr Williams, Chair
- 9. Other Business
- 10. Adjournment

### NASHVILLE METROPOLITAN TRANSIT AUTHORITY Board of Directors Meeting

### December 17, 2020

- I. <u>Call to Order:</u> Due to the outbreak of COVID-19 and the declaration of a state of emergency by Governor Bill Lee, the Nashville Metropolitan Transit Authority (Nashville MTA) held a special, limited agenda meeting via videoconference on Thursday, November 19, 2020 to conduct essential business to protect the health, safety and welfare of Tennesseans in light of the COVID-19 outbreak. This meeting was held in accordance with Executive Order No. 60 in order to discuss essential business.
- II. <u>Roll Call of Persons Present</u>: Gail Carr Williams, Chair; Janet Miller, Vice Chair; Hannah Paramore- Breen, Member; Mary Griffin, Member; Secretary Margaret Behm; Chief Executive Officer Stephen G. Bland, Chief Administrative Officer Rita Roberts-Turner, Chief Financial Officer Ed Oliphant, Director of Service Quality Dan Freudberg, Chief Operating Officer Bill Miller, Chief Development Officer Trey Walker, Director of Planning & Grants Felix Castrodad, Community Outreach & Engagement Specialist Miriam Leibowitz, and Board Liaison Monica Howse.

A quorum was established, and Chair Williams called the meeting to order at 2:30 p.m.

<u>Approval of Minutes</u>: Mary Griffin made a motion to approve the November 19, 2020 minutes. The motion was seconded by Vice Chair Janet Miller and unanimously approved by the board by roll call vote.

**III.** <u>**Public Comments:**</u> Chair Williams opened the floor for public comments. The public was reminded that comments were limited to three minutes.

#### Darius Knight

Mr. Darius Knight's comments were as follows:

- Mr. Knight said that he was concerned with passengers not keeping their masks on while riding the bus. He suggests that the bus drivers ask passengers to put them back on or exit the bus.
- Mr. Knight said that he has started back riding the bus and today had to clean the handrails on bus 141 around the seat and it had major dirt coming off of it. He asked staff to keep handrails and glass /plastic dividers cleaned each day.
- Mr. Knight said that he appreciated CEO Bland and staff on the approval of the Mayor's Transportation Plan and he said that he liked the new QuickTicket system.
- Mr. Knight said some of the fleet of buses need to be repaired so that they don't have to be pulled out of service or road calls for failures that prevent the bus from the entire route.
- Mr. Knight acknowledged all maintenance operators, customer service reps and others for the hard work they do each day to ensure bus service during these unprecedented times for nearly a year now. He asked everyone continue to encourage, uplift and respect operators. He also asked if it would be possible for dispatch to say some encouraging words to operators over the radio at the beginning of each shift.
- Mr. Knight said the current order on New Flyer 60ft. buses is for five buses, which is to replace the NABI 60ft buses 180-185(6), but he thought the original order was for six buses. In 2010, fourteen of those same type of buses were ordred, making it a total of 20, but if you're only ordering five, you're going to be short one bus.

- Mr. Knight said it nearly takes 18-20 months to order new buses, so we need to be mindful of how and when we purchase buses, otherwise we will have a shortage of 60ft buses for the entire fleet.
- Mr. Knight said every time an accident happens it completely pulls a bus out of operation.

### John Bull

Mr. John Bull's public comments were as follows:

- Mr. Bull said that WeGo is his primary mode of transportation and he is currently sheltering-in-place but takes one trip a week for essentials.
- Mr. Bull said that he's a frequent rider of bus #52, #23 and #7 and they all seem clean, on time and well populated with riders and everyone is wearing their masks.
- Mr. Bull described the Council meeting that was held on Tuesday as seismic. He quoted a quote by Winston Churchill: "Now this is not the end. It is not even the beginning of the end. But it is, perhaps, the end of the beginning."
- QuickTicket has been working flawlessly for him the past couple of weeks.

# IV. <u>NICE Committee: Chair Janet Miller reported the following</u>: Vice Chair Janet Miller reported the following:

- a. <u>FY2021 Operating Budget Discussion (NICE-D-20-013)</u>: CFO Ed Oliphant and CEO Steve Bland led a discussion with a focus on the approaches we might take under three specific scenarios for our upcoming Metro Nashville budget submission:
  - 1. Metro's financial position is sufficiently strong to address our funding request at least for baseline services, if not for Better Bus enhancements.
  - 2. Metro's financial position allows some restoration of last year's funding reduction, but still places us in a position requiring us to "re-order" our service priorities given current and likely short to medium-term ridership patterns resulting from the pandemic.
  - 3. Metro's financial position requires a funding cut to the MTA that is sufficiently deep that CARES Act funding will not fill the gap, requiring more permanent changes and an overall reduction in service levels.

CEO Bland said we have begun to assemble our FY2021-2022 operating budget request for submission to Metro Finance and we anticipate the process will take place between late-January and June 2021. Primarily, we will be seeking restoration of the \$22,820,200 in funding that was cut by Metro last year (\$21,320,200 reduction from FY2019-20 levels + \$1,500,000 in requested inflationary adjustment). In addition, we will be seeking another \$1.5 million to cover projected inflationary level increases in expenses for the upcoming year, and approximately \$3.2 million to initiate service expansion as called out in the Better Bus program, and the Mayor's pending City Transportation Plan for part of the fiscal year. This would place the resulting total operating budget appropriation request at \$54,835,900. Overall, this represents an increase of 12.7% over FY2019-20 (the last "normal" appropriation) and 100% over the current year's reduced subsidy. The purpose of this discussion item was to review potential scenarios, and actions we might take in response to these scenarios; and to begin to develop appropriate communication strategies to funders and customers. This discussion was integrated with the following Board agenda item which concerned the Spring Service Update.

CEO Bland said we were only able to balance the FY2020-2021 operating budget due to the availability of one-time Federal CARES Act Funding. This year's budget programs just over \$29.5 million in CARES Act funding in order to stay in balance. Apart from

funds to offset the funding cuts from Metro, these funds are programmed to offset declines in operating revenue as a result of the pandemic, and to cover supplemental expenses created by the pandemic, such as our enhanced cleaning and disinfecting practices and paid employee leave for COVID-related absences.

CEO Bland said we are showing higher than anticipated operating income losses, but lower projected spending in the capital project categories. Interestingly, we did not significantly miss the mark on passenger fares (so far). The additional projected "lost" operating income is primarily coming through reduced contract income from the RTA, as they have reduced service levels on routes operated by the MTA; on rental income from the WeGo Central Parking Garage and Dunkin Donuts; and on advertising as discussed by Jason Minser last month. On the capital project side, Metro Nashville was able to sustain capital funding for 3 projects originally identified to be replaced with CARES Act funding, and several other projects are falling under budget.

Based on current projections, we anticipate that we would have a balance of just under \$9.8 million in CARES Act funding to plug any short-term holes in next year's budget if Metro is unable to replenish full funding for FY2021-22. Alternatively, if Metro is able to fully fund our operations at their "pre-pandemic level" (adjusted for inflation) these remaining funds could be reprogrammed to capital projects identified in the Mayor's pending transportation plan, such as stop and shelter upgrades and/or neighborhood transit centers.

If anticipated Metro funding falls short, we should plan for cost reduction efforts (including fare increases and/or service reductions) as quickly as possible to minimize the long-term disruption to customers to the fullest extent possible. Additionally, we should consider "rearranging" our service priorities between existing services and proposed Better Bus improvements to better reflect current (and likely longer term) ridership patterns resulting from the pandemic.

As in past years, staff will prepare a "two-tier" budget request. "Tier 1" will be a summary of the funding necessary to sustain current baseline services adjusted for anticipated FY2021-22 operating conditions, such as inflation. "Tier 2" would be supplemental funding to begin the service expansion proposed in Mayor Cooper's pending "Metro Nashville Transportation Plan," which is largely drawn from our Better Bus initiative.

Apart from CARES Act and Metro Nashville subsidy funds, the following observed trends are pertinent to the discussion regarding the FY2020-21 operating budget:

- Apart from restoring the \$22.8 million in funds cut last year, we would include a request for an additional increase of \$1.5 million to address inflationary increases and \$3.2 million to initiate partial-year service improvements as outlined in Better Bus and Mayor Cooper's Metro Nashville Transportation Plan. This amounts to a total request of \$54,835,900. Better Bus enhancements encompassed in the Mayor's Transportation Plan would be phased in over a 5-year period and are projected to add a total of \$29 million to our operating budget in current year dollars.
- 2. We are projecting general inflationary increases of 2% to 3%, including wages, based on stable service levels. Several offsetting trends lead us to this "average increase." On the positive side, trends in fuel prices and our current hedge program lead us to project a decline of approximately \$1.8 million in fuel expenses for FY2021-22. Reduced demand for Access and having our own Bus Operator staffing reach full levels will also lead to reductions in third party service contract spending. On the negative side, we continue to see significantly increasing health insurance claims expenses, projecting an overall increase of 10.2%.
- **3.** While it is difficult to forecast what ridership levels will look like in July 2021, significant increases above current levels will certainly depend on downtown employees returning to their offices and schools returning to the classroom.

Currently, we are seeing ridership levels of approximately 50% of pre-COVID levels with youth fare revenues down approximately 87%. Given the current reported status of COVID-19 and the advancement of vaccines, it is all but certain that ridership will remain at these highly depressed levels for the remainder of this fiscal year. For FY2021-22, we are assuming some recovery of passenger revenue and other operating income with the hope that schools return to full in-person instruction in the Fall, and employment levels begin to rebound in the fall with proposed vaccines reaching larger portions of the population. A more complete return of ridership and other operating income, however, will depend on a full recovery of economic activity and jobs, which will be much slower. We also anticipate that the return of downtown office workers whose professions allow them to work remotely will be very slow to return, taking at least several years. Overall, we are not projecting a "full" return of ridership due to the pandemic until FY2023-24, so we are programming CARES Act relief through FY2022-23.

- 4. The CARES Act funds that have allowed transit service in Nashville to escape the pandemic relatively unscathed (so far) are a rapidly declining resource. Even if current discussions of a second Federal aid package materialize, the chances that the MTA will see funding even remotely approaching CARES Act levels is extraordinarily remote. As such, it is extremely unlikely that we will have the budget flexibility for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 that we did this past year if Metro is unable to significantly restore our funding cut.
- 5. Concurrent with Metro Nashville's budget uncertainty relative to our current appropriation level, the City is advancing a Transportation Plan that (if successfully adopted and funded) would expand our annual service hours by approximately 30%. Funding requests for new service are incorporated into our "Tier 2" request to Metro Nashville. As we developed operating budget proposals for our Tier 2 submission to Metro, we considered all the new service included in our Better Bus project. We took an approach of spreading the asks over a 5-year timeframe taking into consideration the time it will take to ramp up internally to support the new service and the time necessary for the City's economy to recover sufficiently to free up the resources to allocate to the plan. Although this approach is dynamic and subject to change, the following is our general approach to service expansion under Better Bus:

FY2022 - \$3.2 million

Extended service hours on our core routes. Route extensions to serve the new Green Hills/Hillsboro Neighborhood Transit Center. This figure represents partial year funding, as it assumes start up in October 2021.

FY2023 - \$5.2 million

Improve off-peak (evening and weekend) service frequency, expand Access on Demand Service hours, expand Mobility on Demand zones. This figure, again, represents partial year funding reflecting a planned start in October 2022.

#### FY2024 - \$6.7 million

Additional service span expansion on more routes, improved frequency on core service and local routes, route extensions to serve the new North Nashville/Clarksville Pike Neighborhood Transit Center, additional mobility on demand zones. This figure, again, represents partial year funding reflecting a planned start in mid FY2024.

#### FY2025 - \$5.5 million

Additional routes gain more frequency during peak and off-peak hours, new crosstown service and improved service on existing crosstowns, continued expansion of mobility on demand.

FY2026 - \$8.4 million

Complete implementation of remaining service enhancements identified in Better Bus and Mayor Cooper's Metro Nashville Transportation Plan.

Vice Chair Miller reminded everyone of the major service cuts that took place two years ago and how incredibly painful it was. She said that she feels that there's not much fat left on the bone to offer up that wouldn't hurt the system. She said planning on current demand is not the way to go because by the summer, when this plan is going to go into effect, we anticipate that we will be on the other side of this pandemic. She said we need to hold as firm as possible on the full restoration, plus the modest ask on the addition. Also, the fact that the Council's approval of the Mayor's Transportation plan shows putting money behind that plan and she believes it will be the right time. Chair Williams agreed and said that she thinks that it's critical that we be fully funded and not where we were, but beyond that point.

b. <u>Spring 2021 Service Update (NICE-D-20-014)</u>: Director of Planning & Grants Felix Castrodad provided an overview of the current trends looking ahead to potential changes in the Spring of 2021:

In March 2020, as the COVID-19 pandemic began to force shutdowns in the Middle Tennessee area, WeGo reduced weekday service levels drastically in order to minimize operator exposure to the virus, enhance cleaning levels, and match resources to greatly reduced ridership as businesses closed, schools and offices shifted to remote modes, and riders reduced discretionary trips to slow the spread of the virus. Service levels during the week were reduced to traditional Saturday levels, with some modifications as routes serving key generators, related to essential services that typically do not operate on Saturday service, continued to operate. Service on several routes was cancelled for the duration of this service reduction. As ridership gradually shifted and increased over the course of the pandemic, WeGo made several adjustments to service to continue meeting rider needs while focusing on customer and operator safety. These changes have been made on a shorter timeline than usual service changes and on a temporary, emergency basis, to respond to changing conditions.

Nearly 9 months into the pandemic, WeGo continues to see significantly altered travel patterns and ridership, and the timeline for recovery remains unclear. In the meantime, the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act allocated emergency assistance to help transit agencies affected by the pandemic. WeGo is using this allocation of funding to continue to support service operations while enhancing cleaning and safety procedures system wide. However, the CARES Act funding is limited and combined with the current economic climate WeGo will face budget challenges in the upcoming year. Despite this, the need for basic service improvements for our riders, outlined in nMotion and further developed with Better Bus is still a priority as the pandemic has further highlighted the need for such improvements. Many of the improvements outlined in Better Bus have been reflected in Mayor Cooper's proposed "Metro Nashville Transportation Plan."

Looking ahead to Spring 2021 potential service changes, WeGo must carefully consider current ridership trends to effectively design service in a way that acknowledges the existing context, while also supporting and advancing the principles of the Better Bus plan for effectively stewarding the amount of resources available. A backdrop to this conversation, will be the capacity of Metro Nashville to restore the \$22.8 million funding cut that was implemented last year. Given the magnitude of the unknowns with respect to the FY2021-22 operating budget, as well as overall ridership and economic recovery from the pandemic, we will need to seriously consider "re-arranging" current service priorities against Better Bus initiatives, possibly reallocating service hours to assure maximum benefit to our customers.

During the past several months, staff has been monitoring trends and analyzing potential scenarios for future service as the system continues to face new challenges related to the economy and the COVID-19 pandemic. Felix Castrodad, Director of Planning was present to answer an overview of the current trends looking ahead to potential changes in the Spring of 2021.

Mary Griffin questioned the frequency of service changes only being done in the Spring and the Fall. She offered up a suggestion to evaluate it quarterly vs. every six months. CEO Bland said that we don't do it more frequently because it's a rather expensive process involving the driver pick. Depending on the nature of the changes, they are also associated with schedule reprints. In addition, our passengers tend to be creatures of habit and we get massive complaints when we adjust the schedule by even two minutes. We do make interim adjustments when schools are in and out of session, but in terms of the major changes that we do, we want to do a relatively limited number because of the intense analysis required.

Chair Williams said that we do a lot with less, but we can't always operate in that mindset. We have to make sure that we're fully funded so our public can have their transportation needs met. She's excited about Council approving the Mayor's Transportation Plan because it shows that it's important to our city and it solidified the importance of transit. With everything that has happened in our city and with Covid, it is so important that we keep the public and our ridership first. we must keep equity at the forefront of the lens of what we do, but we can only do that if we're fully funded. She said we can't keep operating the way we have done in the past. We have such committed staff and drivers, but we can only be committed as the city is to our budget. She expressed her appreciation to Felix Castrodad and staff for the work that has been done. She said, to be able to provide equitable ridership for riders is exciting.

Vice Chair Miller said as far as the Spring changes, ridership is currently down, but this pandemic is only short term and workers are returning slowly to work. The demand for transportation will be back.

CEO Bland concluded the two discussion items by saying, the intent of the service changes presented by Mr. Castrodad was not to "permanently" eliminate routes but to re-order our current priorities until patron demand and funding levels allow us to fully restore all services. It would be irresponsible for us to run the pre-pandemic service patterns and watch some routes experience severe overcrowding while others run empty.

Hannah Paramore-Breen said that we must be careful how we describe the proposed changes, so we do not convey that these services aren't important.

c. <u>Drive to End Chronic Homelessness Program Overview (NICE-D-20-015)</u>: Community Outreach & Engagement Specialist Miriam Leibowitz introduced the representatives from the Metro Social Services Homeless Impact Division, and they presented the program's third year progress report below:

The Drive to End Chronic Homelessness (DECH/Connector Card program) was developed as a Nashville Metro Public Improvement Project (PIP) by the Homeless Impact Division (formerly the Metro Homelessness Commission) with the support of the Nashville Metropolitan Transit Authority (Nashville MTA). The purpose of the program is to work towards the elimination of the transportation barrier to permanent housing and higher income by providing chronically homeless individuals bus passes and case worker support. The PIP was approved on July 1, 2017.

Under this program, the Nashville MTA provided the Homeless Impact Division up to 500 local bus passes to distribute to individuals age 18 or older who experience chronic homelessness. The first year of the program included sensitivity training for bus

operators and select police officers on how to interact with individuals experiencing homelessness.

As of June 30, 2020, a total of 912 individuals have received bus passes: FY2018: 344 participants; FY2019: 296; FY2020: 272.

- All have some kind of disabling condition
- More than 75% have been homeless at least 12 months in the past three (3) years
- Nearly 60% are between 45 to 64 years of age
- 10% served in the military

Over 50% of those receiving bus passes have been permanently housed between October 2017 and June 30, 2020. Most participants (74%) are housed within six (6) months, and on average, participants are housed within 139 days of receiving a bus pass. By the end of the third year of the program, 469 participants have been permanently housed.

Vice Chair Miller thanked the representatives from the Metro Social Services Homeless Impact Division for their presentation and said there's never been a greater need than right now. She said that she loved this program because it's not just a bus pass. She concluded her remarks by saying that wrap around services are so important because we know the issues are so complex.

### V. Operations & Finance Committee Report:

# a. <u>Armored Car Contract Extension (M-A-20-026</u>): Chief Financial Officer Ed Oliphant reported the following:

MTA contracts for armored car pick up services for all cash collected through our fare boxes. We are currently contracted with Loomis and are at the end of a 5-year contract as of December 31, 2020. They pick up portable vaults every weekday at our Nestor property and twice weekly at our Myatt property. They are responsible for counting the cash and delivery to US Bank for deposit into MTA's operating account.

We went out for requests for proposal (RFP) in August 2020 and received 2 proposals. Due to there being a significant difference in the quotes, Procurement has been working diligently to ascertain what the quotes were based upon from each bidder, but due to COVID and vendor availability at the different levels of management within both companies, it has taken a considerable time to get answers. In order to make the correct decision on which company with whom to move forward and the significance of the disparity between the quotes, it will be necessary to ask for up to a one year extension on our current Loomis contract, which is the minimum Loomis would allow, to give us time to complete the RFP process. The contract does have a termination at will clause for both parties.

Staff requested the Board approve a one-year contract extension with Loomis Armored Services at an amount not to exceed \$132,200 which is the same price as the last year of the current contract that expires December 31, 2020.

Vice Chair Janet Miller made a motion to approve the Armored Car Contract Extension. The motion was seconded by Mary Griffin and unanimously approved by the board by roll call vote.

b. <u>Shelter Vendor Contract Award (M-A-20-027</u>): D'Nese Nicolosi presented the following board action details:

In March of 2014, the Board approved the Nashville Metropolitan Transit Authority to execute a contract with Decamil for a base term of five (5) years with three (3) one-year options for the purchase of bus shelters, benches, and other related items. Concurrent

with WeGo's efforts to improve the overall transit experience for our customers, the Transit Stop Department has embarked on a campaign of stop upgrades and stop improvements. Our current bus stop portfolio consists of 1,914 total stops including 343 bench stops, and 231 sheltered stops. During the life of the Decamil contract there were approximately 150+ shelters installed, covering new stops as well as pre-existing shelters that had reached end of useful life. In addition to maintaining existing bus stops, new stop improvements are installed each year as we strive to connect people with their communities. As the Decamil contract is set to expire, WeGo has performed a solicitation for a vendor to provide transit stop amenities.

On August 25, 2020, a Request for Proposals (RFP) was published to the Nashville MTA website, the Transit Talent website, and was sent directly to eight possible suppliers of the requested items. Due to the limited availability of certified DBEs in this industry, there was a 0% race neutral DBE goal applied this project. Proposal submissions were due on October 16, 2020 no later than 11:00 a.m.

The following three proposals were received by the October 16th deadline: and each was found to be responsive:

- Tolar Manufacturing Company, Inc.
- Future Systems, Inc.
- Decamil dba AC Signs

Based upon the results of the solicitation and evaluation process, staff requested the Board provide the Chief Executive Officer the authority to enter into a goods and services contract with Tolar Manufacturing Company, Inc for a total not-to-exceed contract amount of \$1,500,000 for the initial 3 year term and a not-to-exceed amount of \$300,000 for each option year. Funding for purchases under this contract will be allocated annually in the Nashville MTA Capital Budget.

Mary Griffin made a motion to approve the Shelter Vendor Contract Award. The motion was seconded by Vice Chair Janet Miller and unanimously approved by the board by roll call vote.

c. <u>Bulk Fluids Contract Award (M-A-20-028</u>): Chief Operating Officer Bill Miller presented the following board action details:

The purchase of bulk fluids and lubrication products are to be used for required bus maintenance to revenue and support vehicles in the WeGo Public Transit fleet. All approved fluids and lubrication products meet or exceed manufacturers published requirements. This is to ensure warranty requirements are met for fleet vehicles that are under base warranty and to ensure fluids and lubricants that are being used meet or exceed manufacturers requirements.

The Procurement Department issued an Invitation to Bid (ITB) for the purchase of bulk fluids and vehicle lubricants on October 19, 2020. This solicitation will result in an award of an initial three (3) year contract with two (2) one (1) year options which would begin on December 1, 2020, and end on November 30, 2023. The ITB solicitation was sent to ten (10) vendors directly and posted on NashvilleMTA.gov. There were three (3) companies that submitted bids by the October 29, 2020 deadline: Kimbro Oil Company, Parman Energy, and Key Oil Company.

All submittals were reviewed for responsiveness and compliance to the required specifications, by Procurement Staff and by the Maintenance Department Staff. After a detailed review of the submitted bids, Parman Energy was determined to be the lowest responsive bidder.

The staff recommended the Board to authorize the CEO to approve a contract with Parman Energy, to provide bulk fluids and vehicle lubricants. This contract shall not exceed \$1,685,000 for the maximum contract period of five years.

Mary Griffin made a motion to approve the Bulk Fluids Contract Award. The motion was seconded by Vice Chair Janet Miller and unanimously approved by the board by roll call vote.

d. <u>New Flyer Bus Purchase (M-A-20-029</u>): Chief Operating Officer Bill Miller presented the following board action details:

Concurrent with MTA's efforts to operate within our Capital Fleet Replacement Plan for 60' Articulated Buses, staff requests approval to order five (5) New Flyer of America Inc. Clean Diesel 60' Articulated Buses to replace five (5) NABI 60' Articulated Buses that were built and purchased in 2009 and have met Federal Transit Administration (FTA) replacement criteria. The purchase will be made under the Commonwealth of Virginia's contract with New Flyer of America Inc. The approval of this purchase is consistent with the agency's efforts to execute a more balanced schedule for capital spending, and fleet replacement.

If approved, these buses will replace vehicles referenced above that have met the end of their useful life and are no longer recommended for service. Considering lead time for the production scheduling, maintenance staff anticipates delivery dates for these five (5) replacement vehicles in the 1st quarter of FY22.

According to the Federal Law, WeGo may purchase rolling stock and related equipment from any State's cooperative procurement contract or schedule. The Commonwealth of Virginia contract with New Flyer of America Inc. allows other Federally Funded Agencies the right to purchase from this contract. The Procurement Department followed the Federal requirements by ensuring the Commonwealth of Virginia contract that was awarded was a full and open competition and is not subject to geographical preferences. To confirm the bus purchase complies with the FTA's 70% Buy America requirements, WeGo's third-party inspector, First Transit, conducted the required Pre-Award Audit. The audit found that the overall bus components equated to 70.15% American Built Content and met the FTA's final assembly requirements, proving compliance to Buy America requirements. When bus production is completed, First Transit will perform post-delivery inspection as well confirming Buy American content requirements are met. Additionally, if approved by the board, all Federal clauses are issued with the purchase order.

The staff recommended the Board provide the Chief Executive Officer to approve the purchase of five (5) replacement 60' Articulated buses from New Flyer of America Inc. for the attainment of replacement vehicles used in Fixed Route Service.

The total sum for this purchase is \$3,920,266.49 (\$784,053.30 per bus) the cost per bus includes tools and training. Funding sources for the Purchase of the vehicles will be funded utilizing a 2018 Federal 5339b discretionary award that is matched by a TDOT and approved Metro Capital Funds.

Mary Griffin made a motion to approve the New Flyer Bus Purchase. The motion was seconded by Vice Chair Janet Miller and unanimously approved by the board by roll call vote.

- e. <u>Monthly Financial Compared to Budget Report (OF-D-20-025)</u>: The Monthly statement of operations for the month of September 2020 compared to the budget and balance sheet as of September 30, 2020 was included in this month's board packet for review but was not discussed board meeting. Chair Williams advised anyone with questions to contact CFO Ed Oliphant at <u>ed.oliphant@nashville.gov</u>. There was no further discussion at this time.
- f. <u>Monthly Operating Statistics (OF-D-20-026)</u>: The Monthly Operating Statistics Report through September 30, 2020 was included in this month's board packet for review but was not discussed board meeting. Chair Williams advised anyone with questions to

contact Director of Service Quality Dan Freudberg at <u>dan.freudberg@nashville.gov</u>. There was no further discussion at this time.

### VII. <u>CEO's Report:</u>

- Like everyone in the nation, we are concerned about the recent significant uptick in positive COVID-19 cases. We continue to employ enhanced cleaning measures on our vehicles and facilities and continue to deploy security personnel to supplement our Operators efforts to enforce the city's mask mandate. Operator barriers have been installed on almost all of our buses. Unfortunately, we have seen some decline in rider compliance, with recent surveys putting us in the high 70 to low 80% range. Of significant concern, we have seen a tripling of the number of employees we have on leave for COVID – either by testing positive or being exposed to someone testing positive and awaiting test results. This week, the number of people off is just about 40.
- 2. Ridership has been stable at about 50% of normal for the past several months. Of course, we know who hasn't been riding largely our downtown commuters and students. However, I want to take a special note of who has been riding the critical service workers (largely low wage) who have kept this region running while many people have been fortunate to be able to work from home. These are the folks who are cleaning our hospitals, stocking our supermarket shelves, and cooking the meals we have delivered by Uber Eats. With a segment of our community questioning the value of transit, after all why have it when no one is riding it? it will be critically important for this Board to advocate for the continuity, expansion and full funding of our services.
- 3. Progress on a number of our capital projects continues at a good pace:
  - a. For the North Nashville Transit Center, all property documentation is in place and we are advancing into preliminary design. Two active pieces of the project are the preparation of a scope for demolition of the existing structures on the site, and the traffic study that will dictate how much right of way we will need for the outbound station on Clarksville Pike. Public engagement on the initial phases of design is expected to begin shortly after the first of the year. Our Planning and Grants staff are currently preparing responses to questions posed by TDOT with respect to our pending IMPROVE Act Grant for this project.
  - b. We have consultants developing a design solution to permanently address the sinkhole in our Nestor Bus Lot. This will entail decommissioning a failing sewer line that currently runs beneath the lot. You should see more on this project in early 2021, as well as a study we are currently undertaking to evaluate our future options for renovations of the Nestor facility.
  - c. We are in the process of replacing our telephone system, which will significantly enhance our call center capabilities for Customer Care and Access; as well as make it easier for more of our employees to work from home if necessary. Zeda Riggs, who runs our Customer Care Center and our IT Department have been instrumental in advancing this project.
  - d. We have received all our new buses scheduled for delivery, and 6 have completed their acceptance testing and are now in revenue service.
- **4.** With Bill Miller's planned retirement early next year, we are interviewing several candidates to fill the position. We hope to have someone in place by early February.
- **5.** Beta testing on our new QuickTicket mobile payment and smart card system has begun, and it was hard for me to contain my enthusiasm when I was able to board the bus using my phone. Fortunately, the new barriers prevented me from hugging the Operator.
- 6. This past Tuesday, The Metro Council adopted a resolution endorsing Mayor Cooper's Metro Nashville Transportation Plan by a vote of 33-5, with 1 abstaining. There were 3

amendments offered and accepted into the plan. Those having some impact on WeGo include an amendment by Councilman O'Connell committing to include a study of high capacity transit in the West End Corridor, and another from Councilman Rhoten requesting a Star station at Central Pike. Overall, the plan calls for an increase in capital spending for transit projects of \$825.9 million over 10 years, and an additional \$35.21 million in annual operating investment in current year dollars. Now comes the hard part of figuring out how to pay for it.

- **7.** As discussed earlier, given the adoption of the Mayor's Transportation Plan, current trends resulting from the pandemic, and last year's 45% operating funding cut from Metro; it will be extremely urgent for us to communicate our budgetary needs for FY2021-22 to the Mayor, Council and broader community in order to
- 8. On the RTA side:
  - a. Two of the four locomotives have been completely rebuilt and are in service, working well. The third locomotive is currently at the rebuilder in St. Louis, in the early stages of its rehabilitation.
  - b. Mt. Juliet Station is all but complete, with just a few punch list items remaining. We are currently working with the City of Mt. Juliet on a long-term maintenance agreement.
- VIII. <u>Other Business</u>: There was no other business at this time.

### IX. <u>Chair's Report</u>:

Chair Williams reiterated her comments on the budget discussion by saying, the budget should be fully funded to be able to run the service as we had in the past, and whatever is needed to make certain that we're where we should be. She said that she would draft a letter to the Mayor's office in support of our budget proposal over the holidays, and possibly present it to the board at the January meeting.

Chair Williams congratulated Ms. Faye DiMassimo for her hard work on the Mayor's Transportation Plan. She said that she has worked tirelessly in the community and holds the equity banner very high, and lives and works by it. She said that she's excited to work alongside staff with the Mayor's office on the transportation plan and thanked everyone for their efforts.

Chair Williams wished everybody good health and happiness over the holidays. She said It's a time to recharge and get together with our families safely. She said that it might not look like what we're accustomed to seeing, but it's still going to look the way it should, and that is with love and comfort, whether it's in person or online.

Chair Williams thanked CEO Bland for his unwavering leadership during these unprecedented times. Additionally, she thanked staff for their hard work and said that MTA employees are essential to the citizens of Nashville.

X. <u>Adjournment</u>: There was no further discussion and the meeting was adjourned at 4:03 p.m.

Attested:

Gail Carr Williams Chair Margaret L. Behm Secretary

of Nashville & Davidson County, Tennessee

Committee I	Discussion Item	Committee Action Item	⊠ Board Discussion Item			
Item Number:	OF-D-21-001	Meeting Date:	01/28/2021			
Item Title: Monthly Financial Report Compared to Budget						

### **BACKGROUND:**

Attached is a statement of operations for the month of November 2020 compared to the budget and a balance sheet as of November 30, 2020.

### **CURRENT STATUS:**

Chief Financial Officer Ed Oliphant will review the statements at the committee meeting.

**APPROVED:** 

Chief Financial Officer

January 22, 2021

Date

### Metropolitan Transit Authority

Statement of Operations Compared to Budget For the Period Ending November 30, 2020

			UNAL		ED					
	Actual	Month	Month End	F/	Prior Year	Actual	Budget	Y-T-D	F/	Annual
	Month	Budget	Variance	U	Y-T-D	Y-T-D	Y-T-D	Variance	U	Budget
Revenue from Operations:										
Passenger Fares	\$301,130	\$285,815	\$15,315	F	\$3,172,943	\$1,386,941	\$1,254,640	\$132,301	F	\$3,589,900
Access Ride	41,657	31,770	9,887	F	388,879	211,632	179,040	32,592	F	425,000
Contract Revenues	130,540	251,912	(121,372)	U	1,137,115	670,760	1,267,418	(596,658)	U	3,038,657
Advertising	62,861	50,410	12,451	F	333,288	268,444	252,044	16,400	F	604,900
Other Non-Trans Revenue	21,683	58,975	(37,292)	U	589,442	135,316	297,775	(162,459)	U	730,800
Total Operating Revenue	557,871	678,882	(121,011)	U	5,621,667	2,673,093	3,250,917	(577,824)	U	8,389,257
Federal/State/Local Income:										
Local Assistance	5,527,850	4,315,700	1,212,150	F	28,200,000	27,315,700	27,315,700	0	F	27,315,700
State Assistance	0	0	0	F	5,138,138	0	0	0	F	4,977,900
EMSID - Project Management Grant	0	0	0	F	0	41,700	0	41,700	F	0
Federal Assistance - CARES Act	0	0	0	F	0	13,275,859	12,500,000	775,859	F	29,516,373
Total Assistance Income	5,527,850	4,315,700	1,212,150	F	33,338,138	40,633,259	39,815,700	817,559	F	61,809,973
Capital Revenue:										
Capital Operating Reimbursement	0	0	0	F	0	0	0	0	F	17,212,435
Capital ADA Reimbursement	0	0	0	F	0	0	0	0	F	2,625,000
Total Capital Income	0	0	0	F	0	0	0	0	F	19,837,435
	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	1	19,037,433
Total Revenue	\$6,085,721	\$4,994,582	\$1,091,139	F	\$38,959,805	\$43,306,352	\$43,066,617	\$239,735	F	\$90,036,665
Expenses from Operations:										
Labor and Fringes	\$6,127,089	\$5,354,967	(\$772,122)	U	\$24,715,748	\$26,950,590	\$26,389,221	(\$561,369)	U	\$63,793,410
Services	665,765	967,605	301,840	F	3,989,304	3,560,757	4,918,328	1,357,571	F	11,329,705
Fuel	280,923	317,906	36,983	F	2,179,175	1,407,885	1,559,002	151,117	F	4,622,290
Parts, Materials and Supplies	484,605	514,399	29,794	F	2,272,612	2,396,343	2,459,999	63,656	F	6,088,120
Utilities	111,534	115,242	3,708	F	436,934	472,166	533,381	61,215	F	1,376,150
Casualty and Liability	182,920	189,400	6,480	F	956,233	916,767	954,620	37,853	F	2,251,070
Other	6,253	42,258	36,005	F	272,407	147,955	311,504	163,549	F	575,920
Total Operating Expenses	7,859,089	7,501,777	(357,312)	U	34,822,413	35,852,463	37,126,055	1,273,592	F	90,036,665
Surplus / (Deficit) before GASB 33	(\$1,773,368)	(\$2,507,195)	\$733,827	F	\$4,137,392	\$7,453,889	\$5,940,562	\$1,513,327	F	\$0
				_					-	
Capital Grant Revenue	1,333,696		1,333,696	F	9,149,790	6,199,812		6,199,812	F	
Capital Grant Revenue -CARES Act	0		0	F		41,397		41,397	F	
Rental income - MCC Amortization	49,167		49,167	F	245,835	245,835		245,835	F	
Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Property	4,913		4,913	F	12,072	(127,630)		(127,630)	U	
Depreciation	(1,680,901)		(1,680,901)	U	(7,823,569)	(8,967,706)		(8,967,706)	U	0
Surplus / (Deficit)	(\$2,066,493)	(\$2,507,195)	\$440,702	F	\$5,721,520	\$4,845,597	\$5,940,562	(\$1,094,965)	U	\$0

### Metropolitan Transit Authority

### **Comparative Balance Sheets**

					Month Ended November 30, 2020	Month Ended June 30, 2020
CURRENT ASSETS					(unaudited)	(audited)
Cash and cash ed	uivalents				\$10,110,270	\$5,296,169
Receivables from		nd local dov	ernment		682,130	7,317,284
Accounts receival		ina iooai goi			712,304	778,437
Materials and sup	plies				2,812,517	2,675,559
Prepaid expense	and other				1,610,475	1,031,959
Pension Deferred	Outflow				25,175,574	25,175,574
Total Curren	t Assets				41,103,270	42,274,982
PROPERTY AND EQU	IPMENT					
Land					14,733,025	14,733,025
Building, shelter a	ind benches				110,000,597	109,841,158
Revenue equipme	ent and parts				161,074,721	169,469,402
Office furniture ar	id equipment				5,906,371	5,931,031
Other					25,858,134	22,625,060
					317,572,848	322,599,676
Less: Accumulate	ed Depreciation	l			(155,383,234)	(158,153,258)
Total Proper	ty and equipme	nt, net			162,189,614	164,446,418
OTHER ASSETS						
Cash and investme	ents for self-ins	surance and	other		407,617	884,789
TOTAL ASSETS				:	\$203,700,501	\$207,606,189
LIABILITIES AND NET						
CURRENT LIABILITIE	-				• · · · ·	<b>.</b>
Accounts payable					\$1,284,057	\$2,770,460
Accrued expense					6,337,107	7,881,004
Deferred revenue					46,406	45,759
Note Payable Total Curren	t Liabilities			1	0 7,667,570	5,500,000 16,197,223
					, ,	-, -, -
NON-CURRENT LIAB	-				7 404 040	7 077 450
Deferred Revenue					7,131,618	7,377,453
Refundable Grant					0	431,663
Net Pension Liabi	.,				11,835,343	11,835,343
Pension Deferred Net other postem		ite obligation			3,915,737 92,575,015	3,915,737 92,575,015
Net other postern		its obligation	15		92,575,015	92,575,015
NET ASSETS	Laccota				155,057,996	151 560 065
Invested in capita Reserve for capita					, ,	151,568,965
Unrestricted	ai purchases				57,616 (79,385,991)	34,766
Current Year Sur	olus / (deficit)				4,845,597	(63,009,629) (13,320,347)
Total Net As				1	80,575,218	75,273,755
				i		
TOTAL LIABILITIES A	ND NET ASSE	TS		:	\$203,700,501	\$207,606,189
	Current	> 30 days	> 60 Days	> 90 days	Total	
Accounts Receivable	\$618,715	\$71,829	\$16,606	\$5,154	\$712,304	
	86.9%	10.1%	2.3%	0.7%	100.0%	
Accounts Payable	\$1,003,658	\$105,892	\$48,477	\$126,030	\$1,284,057	
-	78.2%	8.2%	3.8%	9.8%	100.0%	

of Nashville & Davidson County, Tennessee

Committee I	Discussion Item	Committee Actio	n Item	⊠ Board Discussion Item
Item Number:	OF-D-21-002		Meeting Date:	01/28/2021
Item Title:	Monthly Operating	Statistics		

### **BACKGROUND:**

Attached are monthly operating statistics through November 30, 2020.

### **CURRENT STATUS:**

Director of Service Quality Dan Freudberg will review the statistics at the committee meeting.

**APPROVED:** 

Dan mendling

Director of Service Quality

January 22, 2021

Date

Operatio	ons Dashb	oard Rep	oort	
· · ·		•		
	November 2020	November 2019	Pct. Change	Average Monthly Goals
Ridership				
Total Passengers				
Bus	335,353	701,156	-52.2%	
Access (WeGo)	13,702	23,839	-42.5%	
Access (Webb) Access (Overflow/Taxi)	3,390	7,063	-52.0%	
Access (Overnow Taxi) Access-on-Demand *	3,051	4,305	-29.1%	
Access Total	20,143	35,207	-42.8%	
Total	355,496	736,363	-51.7%	785,000
	000,100	100,000	011170	100,000
Passengers per Revenue Hour				
Bus	10.82	18.28	-40.8%	18
Access	1.52	1.85	-17.8%	2.1
Total Scheduled Revenue Hours	40,019	51,239	-21.9%	
Total Cost Per Scheduled Revenue Hour of				
Service	\$190.51	\$122.89	55.0%	
	<b></b>	<b> </b>	00.070	
Safety				
Miles Between Total Accidents	100,807	35,923	180.6%	36,000
Miles Between Preventable Accidents	504,033	323,306	55.9%	300,000
Preventable Accidents	1	2	-50.0%	
Non-Preventable Accidents	4	16	-75.0%	
Total Accidents	5	18	-72.2%	
Service Quality				
Bus Trip Completion Percentage	99.9%	99.9%	0.0%	99.5%
Access Trip Denials	0	0	0.0%	0
Miles Between Road Calls	7,099	5,574	27.4%	3,800
	.,	-,		-,
On-Time Performance				
Bus	90.6%	84.8%	5.7%	85.0%
Access (WeGo)	93.8%	79.3%	14.5%	89.0%
Access (Overflow/Taxi)	97.2%	94.8%	2.4%	89.0%
Access Total	94.5%	83.0%	11.5%	89.0%
Customer Care				
Passengers Carried Per Complaint				
Bus	3,457	4,495	-23.1%	6,000
Access	387	249	55.4%	600
Total Calls Received	14,457	26,731	-45.9%	
Percent of Calls Answered	97.8%	90.2%	7.6%	95.0%

Y2021 vember 745,917 8,964 8,333 5,334 02,631 348,548 11.04 1.50 04,047 170.43 53,375 27,003 6 42 48	FY2020           November           3,877,938           122,233           43,993           22,321           188,547           4,066,485           18.07           1.86           280,476           \$116.12           43,073           235,466           15           67           82	-55.0%         -43.6%         -58.3%         -31.3%         -45.6%         -54.5%	Average Monthly Goals 3,925,000 18 2.1 36,000 300,000
vember           745,917           8,964           8,333           5,334           02,631           348,548           11.04           1.50           04,047           170.43           53,375           27,003           6           42	November           3,877,938           122,233           43,993           22,321           188,547           4,066,485           18.07           1.86           280,476           \$116.12           43,073           235,466           15           67	-55.0%         -43.6%         -58.3%         -31.3%         -45.6%         -54.5%             -38.9%         -19.4%         -27.2%         46.8%             23.9%         81.3%         -60.0%         -37.3%	Monthly Goals 3,925,000 18 2.1 36,000
8,964         8,333         5,334         5,334         5,334         5,334         12,631         348,548         11.04         1.50         04,047         170.43         53,375         27,003         6         42	122,233         43,993         22,321         188,547         4,066,485         18.07         1.86         280,476         \$116.12         43,073         235,466         15         67	-43.6% -58.3% -31.3% -45.6% -54.5% -54.5% -19.4% -27.2% 46.8% 23.9% 81.3% -60.0% -37.3%	18 2.1 36,000
8,964         8,333         5,334         5,334         5,334         5,334         12,631         348,548         11.04         1.50         04,047         170.43         53,375         27,003         6         42	122,233         43,993         22,321         188,547         4,066,485         18.07         1.86         280,476         \$116.12         43,073         235,466         15         67	-43.6% -58.3% -31.3% -45.6% -54.5% -54.5% -19.4% -27.2% 46.8% 23.9% 81.3% -60.0% -37.3%	18 2.1 36,000
8,964         8,333         5,334         5,334         5,334         5,334         12,631         348,548         11.04         1.50         04,047         170.43         53,375         27,003         6         42	122,233         43,993         22,321         188,547         4,066,485         18.07         1.86         280,476         \$116.12         43,073         235,466         15         67	-43.6% -58.3% -31.3% -45.6% -54.5% -54.5% -19.4% -27.2% 46.8% 23.9% 81.3% -60.0% -37.3%	18 2.1 36,000
8,333 5,334 5,334 02,631 848,548 11.04 1.50 04,047 170.43 53,375 27,003 6 42	43,993 22,321 188,547 4,066,485 18.07 1.86 280,476 \$116.12 43,073 235,466 15 67	-58.3% -31.3% -45.6% -54.5% -54.5% -19.4% -27.2% 46.8% 23.9% 81.3% -60.0% -37.3%	18 2.1 36,000
5,334 02,631 348,548 11.04 1.50 04,047 170.43 53,375 27,003 6 42	22,321 188,547 4,066,485 18.07 1.86 280,476 \$116.12 43,073 235,466 15 67	-31.3% -45.6% -54.5% -54.5% -19.4% -27.2% 46.8% 23.9% 81.3% -60.0% -37.3%	18 2.1 36,000
D2,631         348,548         11.04         1.50         04,047         170.43         53,375         27,003         6         42	188,547         4,066,485         18.07         1.86         280,476         \$116.12         43,073         235,466         15         67	-45.6% -54.5% -19.4% -27.2% 46.8% 23.9% 81.3% -60.0% -37.3%	18 2.1 36,000
11.04         1.50         04,047         170.43         53,375         27,003         6         42	4,066,485 18.07 1.86 280,476 \$116.12 43,073 235,466 15 67	-54.5% -38.9% -19.4% -27.2% 46.8% <u>23.9%</u> 81.3% -60.0% -37.3%	18 2.1 36,000
11.04 1.50 04,047 170.43 53,375 27,003 6 42	18.07 1.86 280,476 \$116.12 43,073 235,466 15 67	-38.9% -19.4% -27.2% 46.8% <u>23.9%</u> 81.3% -60.0% -37.3%	18 2.1 36,000
1.50         04,047         170.43         53,375         27,003         6         42	1.86 280,476 \$116.12 43,073 235,466 15 67	-19.4% -27.2% 46.8% 23.9% 81.3% -60.0% -37.3%	2.1 36,000
1.50         04,047         170.43         53,375         27,003         6         42	1.86 280,476 \$116.12 43,073 235,466 15 67	-19.4% -27.2% 46.8% 23.9% 81.3% -60.0% -37.3%	2.1 36,000
04,047 170.43 53,375 27,003 6 42	280,476 \$116.12 43,073 235,466 15 67	-27.2% 46.8% 23.9% 81.3% -60.0% -37.3%	36,000
170.43 53,375 27,003 6 42	\$116.12 43,073 235,466 15 67	46.8% 23.9% 81.3% -60.0% -37.3%	
53,375 27,003 6 42	43,073 235,466 15 67	23.9% 81.3% -60.0% -37.3%	
53,375 27,003 6 42	43,073 235,466 15 67	23.9% 81.3% -60.0% -37.3%	
27,003 6 42	235,466 15 67	81.3% -60.0% -37.3%	
27,003 6 42	235,466 15 67	81.3% -60.0% -37.3%	
27,003 6 42	235,466 15 67	81.3% -60.0% -37.3%	
6 42	15 67	-60.0% -37.3%	000,000
42	67	-37.3%	
48	82	-41.5%	
99.9%	99.6%	0.3%	99.5%
0	0	0.0%	0
4,387	4,393	-0.1%	3,800
<u> </u>	·		·
0.5%	92 10/	7 40/	85.0%
			89.0%
			89.0%
			89.0%
2 1 5 7	4.600	24.00/	6.000
			6,000
4/3	209	03.0%	600
72.640	142.662	-49.1%	
	89.0%	7.5%	95.0%
	90.5% 93.3% 97.5% 94.2% 3,157 473 72,640 96.5%	93.3%     82.1%       97.5%     95.0%       94.2%     85.6%       3,157     4,639       473     289       72,640     142,662	93.3%       82.1%       11.3%         97.5%       95.0%       2.5%         94.2%       85.6%       8.6%         3,157       4,639       -31.9%         473       289       63.6%         72,640       142,662       -49.1%

Operatio	ns Dashboard Glossary
Metric	Definitons
Ridership	
Total Passengers	
Bus	Total fixed route passenger boardings on all WeGo operated services
Access (WeGo)	Total paratransit passenger boardings on WeGo vehicles
Access (Overflow/Taxi)	Total paratransit passenger boardings on third-party service providers
Access on Demand	Total paratransit passenger boardings on Access-on-Demand service by third-party providers
Access Total	Total paratransit boardings (WeGo vehicles and third-party service providers, includes Access-on Demand ridership)
Passengers per Revenue Hour	
Bus	Total fixed route passenger boardings divided by total scheduled fixed route revenue vehicle hours.
Access	Total paratransit boardings on WeGo vans divided by total scheduled paratransit revenue vehicle hours.
Total Scheduled Revenue Hours	Total fixed route and paratransit scheduled revenue vehicle hours. Note: Revenue vehicle hours are total vehicle in-service hours excluding vehicle travel from the garage to the first timepoint (or pickup for paratransit) and from the last timepoint (or pickup) to the garage.
Total Cost Per Scheduled Revenue Hour of Service	Total fully allocated cost to deliver service divided by the total scheduled revenue hours.
Safety	
Miles Between Total Accidents	Total number of miles travelled by all WeGo revenue vehicles (fixed route and paratransit) divided by the total number of accidents.
Miles Between Preventable Accidents	Total number of miles travelled by all WeGo revenue vehicles (fixed route and paratransit) divided by the total number of preventable accidents.
Preventable Accidents	A motor vehicle collision, in which the Operator did not do everything reasonable to avoid a collision, committed an error or failed to react to the errors of others.
Non-Preventable Accidents	A motor vehicle collision in which the Operator committed no driving error and reacted reasonably to the errors of others.
Internal Accidents	A motor vehicle collision that occurs on Nestor or Myatt yard.
External Accidents	A motor vehicle collision that occurs outside of Nestor or Myatt yard.

Metric Definitons						
Service Quality						
Bus Trip Completion Percentage	Percentage of one-way fixed route revenue trips completed versus scheduled.					
Access Trip Denials	Total number of paratransit trips that cannot be scheduled within one hour before or after the customer's requested pick-up time.					
Miles Between Road Calls	Any mechanical failure, excluding farebox and accidents. Bus and Access metrics will be reported separately.					
On-Time Performance						
Bus	Percentage of total scheduled fixed route timepoint departures occurring between 59 seconds early and 5 minutes 59 seconds late.					
Access (WeGo & Taxi/Overflow)	Percentage of total trips where vehicle arrives no later than 59 seconds outside of the scheduled pick-up window.					
Customer Care Passengers Carried Per Complaint						
Bus	Total fixed route passengers divided by total fixed route customer complaints.					
Access	Total paratransit (WeGo and third-party service providers) passengers divided by total paratransit customer complaints.					
Total Calls Received						
Percent of Calls Answered	Percentage of calls received that were answered. Unanswered calls are calls that are lost for any reason once in the customer call phone queue.					

of Nashville & Davidson County, Tennessee

### **Board Action Item**

Item Number:	M-A-21-001	Meeting Date:	01/28/2021			
Item Title:	Gresham Smith and Partners A&E Contract Task Order Increase for Murfreesboro Transit Signal Priority Project					

### BACKGROUND:

In December 2015, the Nashville MTA awarded Gresham Smith and Partners (GS&P) an Indefinite Delivery, Indefinite Quantity Contract to provide project management, architectural, engineering, and construction support services on a task-order basis with an initial contract duration of three years with two additional one-year extensions and a maximum value of \$2 million. Task Order #5 was issued in 2016 for \$160,210 for GS&P to provide project management services for the Murfreesboro Transit Signal Priority (TSP) project. In April 2018, the Board approved a request to increase the contract value to \$3 million, extend the contract duration through December 31, 2019, and increase the Murfreesboro task order by \$325,000 and a not-to-exceed cap of \$500,000. In November 2019, in response to further delays on the Murfreesboro project, the Board approved a request to add \$143,000 to the task order for a new total value of \$643,000, increase the total contract value to \$3.5 million, and extend the contract duration to December 31, 2020. The task order is funded using federal 5307 flexed and local funds within the overall project budget.

### **CURRENT STATUS:**

The Gresham Smith contract has a remaining balance of \$1.1 million. Due to delays in final acceptance testing for the TSP software, completion of the Murfreesboro project is currently projected for June 2021. As project management consultant, GS&P's services are required through project completion and project closeout at an additional cost of \$115,000, bringing the total cost of the assignment to \$758,000. Sufficient authorization remains in the contract balance to cover the cost of the additional work; it will not be necessary to increase the overall contract value. With GS&P's involvement in the project since its inception, it would be impractical and not cost-effective to engage a new consultant to provide project management services in this late stage of the project.

The contract has a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) participation goal of 15%. The DBEs participating in the contract are: ARTifice, Civil Infrastructure Associates, Connico, Inc. and Geotek Engineering. Through October 31, 2020, DBE participation on the contract has reached 15.73%.

### **RECOMMENDATION:**

We are requesting the Board to approve an increase of \$115,000 for the Murfreesboro TSP project management services task order for a new not-to-exceed task order value of \$758,000, with no increase to the overall contract value and to be funded using 5307 flexed and local funds.

### APPROVED:

Board Secretary

January 22, 2021

of Nashville & Davidson County, Tennessee

Committee I	Discussion Item	nmittee Action Item	Board Discussion Item			
Item Number:	NICE-D-21-001	Meeting Date:	01/28/2021			
Item Title:	Applications of Innovative Technology to Enhance Service Reliability					

### BACKGROUND:

With the rapidly changing operating conditions throughout Nashville over the past several years, the operation of consistently reliable transit service throughout the region – and particularly in the Downtown Core and in our Interstate Highway corridors – is becoming increasingly difficult. Factors such as ambient traffic congestion, event-related detours and delays, active construction sites and areas of extremely heavy pedestrian activity continue to challenge our operating staff – and particularly our Street Supervisors and Radio Controllers – in the provision of consistently reliable service to our customers.

Over the past few years, WeGo Public Transit has implemented a variety of technology projects to enhance operations, including automatic vehicle locations systems, automated passenger counters, next stop annunciation systems, transit signal priority, and (most recently) account based next generation fare collection equipment. Information generated through these systems has been extremely beneficial in terms of both system planning (such as measurements of corridor delay leading to schedule adjustments) and in providing better information in real-time to our customers.

### CURRENT STATUS:

Within the past month, Nashville received notification of two Federal Grant Awards that will help to facilitate more rapid deployment of innovative technologies to help improve transit service reliability (as well as advance other city mobility goals). The Metropolitan Government of Nashville and Davidson County was awarded \$1.5 million in Advanced Transportation and Congestion Management Technologies Deployment (ATCMTD) funding through the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) to support a \$3 million project in the Charlotte Avenue Corridor involving traffic management system upgrades, and featuring advanced transit system headway management techniques. Closely related, WeGo Public Transit has been notified of an award of \$585,000 in Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Funds under its COVID-19 Research Demonstration Grant Program to support real-time and predictive approaches to passenger load management. Director of Service Quality Dan Freudberg will describe the overall objectives and approaches of the WeGo Public Transit dynamic operations management approach. Expanding on Dan's presentation will be Faye DiMassimo, Mayor Cooper's Senior Advisor for Transportation and Infrastructure to outline the City's broader mobility goals for the Charlotte Avenue Project.

**APPROVED:** 

Dan mendling

Director of Service Quality

January 22, 2021

Date